User's Guide: Decision Solutions Model for Water Acquisition





September 2006

CH2MHILL 2485 Natomas Park Drive, Suite 600 Sacramento, CA 95833

Contents

User's Guide: Decision Solutions Model for Water Acquisition1
Background1
The Purpose of the User's Manual
Process to Rank Potential Water Acquisitions Using the DSM4
The DSM Structure
The DSM Base Model in CDP
Editing Names of Alternatives and Adding New Alternatives7
Editing Names/Notes of Alternatives
Represent All Alternatives in the DSM9
Connect All Alternatives to the Model Structure
Policy Criteria Weights11
Scoring Elements for Cost of Alternatives
Scoring Elements for Biological Benefits
Scoring Elements for Implementability
Description of Scoring Elements
DSM Workbook—Assumptions, Reports, and Navigation 17
Summary of Input Data
Defining Acquisition Alternatives
Summary Information and General Contract Information
Initial and Annual Cost
Net Present Value, Local Economic Impacts, Biological Benefits, Scientific Information, and Implementability
Expanding Monthly Contract Schedule
Expanding Infrastructure Costs
Expanding Net Present Value

Contents, continued

Chinook Statistics	25
Life Stage	27
Example of Populated Alternatives	
Example of Populated Contract Schedule	
Example of Populated Infrastructure Costs	
Details of Net Present Value Calculation	
Hidden Worksheets	
CDP Export Data Worksheet	
Instream Target Flow—Below Normal Water Year	
Instream Target Flow—Specific Values	
Base Flows and Flow Deficits	
Detailed Flow Value Calculations	
Water Year Sequences	
Exporting Scores to CDP	
Pasting Scores in CDP	40
Out of Range Errors	41
CDP Populated with Scores	
Ranked Alternatives	
Contributions by Policy Criteria	44
Contributions by Scoring Elements	45
Works Cited	46
Contacts for Additional Information	

User's Guide: Decision Solutions Model for Water Acquisition

The Decision Solutions Model (DSM) is a multi-discipline, decision support model designed to assess water acquisition opportunities using qualitative and quantitative data. It integrates costs, local economic impacts, biological impacts, potential for scientific study, and water transfer implementability into the decision making process. It was created for the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (FWS) to assist in making transparent and defensible water acquisition decisions. The model was designed in collaboration with federal and state resource agencies, including the FWS, Anadromous Fish Restoration Program (AFRP) , U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation), and California Department of Fish and Game (CDFG), and stakeholders, including the Central Valley Project Water Association, The Bay Institute, Trust for Public Land, and Western Area Power Administration.

Background

The Central Valley Project Improvement Act (CVPIA) amended the management of the Central Valley Project (CVP) to place fish and wildlife protection, restoration, and enhancement on equal priority with agricultural, municipal and industrial (M&I), and hydroelectric generational uses of water. The CVPIA mandates in Section 3406(b)(1) that the Interior at least double the population of anadromous fishes in Central Valley streams and rivers and provide supplemental water to wildlife refuges in California. Section 3406(b)(2) dedicates and mandates the management of 800,000 acre-feet (AF) of CVP water annually for the primary purpose of implementing fish, wildlife, and habitat restoration projects and measures. Section 3406(b)(3) directs the Interior to develop and implement a water acquisition program that helps meet the environmental goals of the CVPIA.

In response to CVPIA mandates, The Water Acquisition Program (WAP), a joint effort between Reclamation and FWS, was created to acquire water supplies for protecting, restoring, and enhancing fish and wildlife populations. The WAP supports the AFRP, which was developed to make all reasonable efforts to double the natural production of anadromous fishes in Central Valley streams and rivers. The drainages included in this effort are Clear, Cow, Cottonwood, Battle, Antelope, Mill, Deer, Big Chico, and Butte creeks; and Feather, Yuba, Bear, Cosumnes, Mokelumne, Calaveras, Stanislaus, Tuolumne, and Merced rivers. All 18 drainages are modeled in the DSM, however hydrologic modeling and Chinook escapement data are missing for some drainages. Drainages were excluded in ECOSIM (a hydrologic simulation model of all major streams and rivers tributary to the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta) because they are missing flow targets or do not have good acquisition opportunities. Escapement data are missing because

monitoring programs are not funded and in place for some drainages. Table 1 summarizes any hydrologic modeling or data gaps for each drainage. The following drainages are not limited by missing information: Mill, Deer, and Butte creeks and Feather, Yuba, Mokelumne, Stanislaus, Tuolumne, and Merced rivers. When flow targets are established and escapement monitoring becomes available for a drainage, the new data may be added to the DSM simply by updating the Microsoft Excel input data files.

TABLE 1

Availability of Hydrologic Modeling and Chinook Escapement Data

		ECOSIM	GrandTab Escapement Data					
Drainage	Modeled	Notes	Data Available	Notes				
Clear Creek	No	Assumed resolved under (b)(2)	Yes					
Cow Creek	Yes		No	No monitoring program on drainage				
Cottonwood Creek	No	No established flow targets	No	No monitoring program on drainage				
Battle Creek	No	No established flow targets	Yes					
Antelope Creek	Yes		No	No monitoring program on drainage				
Mill Creek	Yes		Yes					
Deer Creek	Yes		Yes					
Big Chico Creek	No	No established flow targets	No	No monitoring program on drainage				
Butte Creek	Yes		Yes					
Feather River	Yes		Yes					
Yuba River	Yes		Yes					
Bear River	No	No established flow targets; little acquisition potential	No	No monitoring program on drainage				
Cosumnes River	No	No established flow targets; little acquisition potential	No	No monitoring program on drainage				
Mokelumne River	Yes		Yes					
Calaveras River	No	No established flow targets; little acquisition potential	No	Winter run data is unsubstantiated				
Stanislaus River	Yes							
Tuolumne River	Yes							
Merced River	Yes							

The Purpose of the User's Manual

The purpose of the DSM manual is to provide an overview of the water acquisition process and focus on the mechanics of updating data, inputting data, and running and interpreting results from the DSM. Results from the DSM are potential water acquisitions ranked in terms of benefit to anadromous fish. The rankings are based on a set of predetermined policies, criteria, and scoring guidelines. The DSM is represented by a Microsoft Excel workbook (DSM workbook) and a decision science software called Criterium DecisionPlus (CDP) produced by InfoHarvest, Inc. The DSM workbook is used to manage input data and qualitative scores, calculate quantitative scores, and format the scores for export to CDP. The CDP software takes the scores for each alternative from the spreadsheet and applies them to the decision model and produces a ranked list of water acquisition alternatives and a detailed breakdown of how each criterion contributed to an alternative's overall ranking.

The DSM User's Manual details the structure of the DSM, the DSM workbook, and the basics of CDP. For a technical discussion of the DSM, refer to the Decision Science and SMART Technical Memorandum in the appendix of the Final Report. For a more detailed discussion and advanced features of CDP, please refer to the CDP User's Guide Version 3.0.

This manual was developed assuming the user is familiar with Microsoft Windows-based applications, such as Excel, and would be involved in the DSM portion of the water acquisition process. The processes of setting policy priorities, solicitation of willing sellers, and budgetary decisions are assumed to be documented elsewhere. The output from the DSM is only one piece of the information that goes into the decisionmaking process for acquiring water, hence the DSM is considered a decision support tool.

Process to Rank Potential Water Acquisitions Using the DSM

At various points in the calendar or fiscal year, the FWS may solicit water acquisitions from willing sellers. For each round of solicitation, a set of offers will be received by the FWS. Those offers that pass the screening process become water acquisition alternatives that are scored and input into CDP to be ranked.

C. Data from ECOSIM, AFRP guidelines (such as instream target flows), and the DFG's GrandTab database are used in the DSM. Before running the DSM, this data should be verified as the most current or updated as needed. The qualitative scores for the DSM will be assigned by individuals with specific knowledge of the local watershed, fish populations, and institutional and political climates. The user of the DSM may or may not be responsible for convening local experts to score alternatives. However, the DSM user must obtain the scores from the person acting as liaison to the experts or directly from the experts.

E. CDP takes the data from the DSM workbook and produces a ranked list of alternatives based on the scores and the weighted importance of each scoring element. Weights will be discussed on page 4.



The DSM Structure

The structure of the DSM was determined through a group process with agency staff and other stakeholders and based on their expertise regarding the policies and factors that affect how valuable characteristics of water acquisitions are to anadromous fish. These weights should not be changed without another group process and substantive justification. For additional information on the weighting process and interpreting the weights, please refer to the FWS Swing Weighting Directions and the Decision Science and SMART Technical Memorandum in the appendix of the Final Report.

The Cost of Alternative, Biological Benefits, and Implementability policy criteria are further decomposed into more detailed factors, called scoring elements. Local Economic Impacts and Scientific Information are not decomposed into scoring elements and are considered both policy criteria and scoring elements. The scoring elements are the factors that are scored with respect to an alternative's benefits to anadromous fish. Note that only one measurement of cost is used at a time. That scoring element would be weighted as 100, while the other two are weighted at zero. If more than one cost measure is used, the scoring element level weighting should be developed by consensus among WAP decisonmakers, economists, and others knowledgeable about how each measure should be interpreted in light of federal budgeting and expenditure policies.



The DSM Base Model in CDP

The basic DSM structure and weights are built into a CDP file named DSM Base Model. The first step in ranking a set of water acquisition alternatives is to launch CDP and represent each alternative under the Water Acquisition Alternatives layer of the model.

Criterium DecisionPlus - [Hi	erarchy - C:\DOCUME~1\ Besults Analysis Window Help	NLEE\DESKTOP\USERGU~1\F	ORSCR~2.CDP]
D 🕳 🖬 🎒 Da. New Open Save Print Prevw	Co ↔ ↔ Ţ	ate Scores Help	2011-1 20
Goal	Policy Criteria	Scoring Elements	Water Acquisition Alternatives
Value to Anadromous Fish	Cost of Alternatives Local Economic Impacts Biological Benefits Scientific Information	NPV of Costs Unit Costs (NPV) Annualized Costs 2x Absolute 2x Distributed Life Stage Flow Value Endangered Species Benefits Ecological Impairments Ecological Improvements Water Rights Type Political Acceptance Public Acceptance Regulatory Timetable	Alternative 1
CH2M HILL CH2M HILL Hierarchy - Model1 Sh	MART WEIGHTS 🗙 Not Connected 🗙	Not Bated 2:25 PM	

Editing Names of Alternatives and Adding New Alternatives

Applying a right mouse click to the Alternative 1 block brings up a menu with useful options.



Editing Names/Notes of Alternatives





Connect All Alternatives to the Model Structure

Once all the blocks representing the alternatives have been created, they must be connected to the model structure.

erium DecisionPlus - [Hierarchy - C/DOCUME-1/NLEE/DESKTOP/USERGU-1/FORSCR-1/CDP] - 8 × **A.** From the CDP View Block Level Model Results Analysis Window Help - 10 2 menu bar, choose Hierarchy Dala -12 0 . Henarchy Priorities Undo Navig Options Heb "View/Connect All News Rale Scores Herarche Graph Policy Criteria **Scoring Elements** Water Acquisition Alternatives Alternatives." This Hide Connections to Alternatives will connect each Show Missing Connectiv alternative to the Connect All Alternati model structure. The Show Accurs, Weights user may connect each Show Unvaled Blocks Show Disconnected Bld dka alternative individually Anange Blocks by dragging the NPV of Costs Resize Level Widths alternative block onto Unit Costs (NPV) of Alternatives Mavipator each scoring element. ✓ Show Toobar **C.** If the model is not connected, this Antelope Creek Conjunctive If the user must all Show Tooba Detail Mill Creek Spot Market delete a connected field will indicate "Not Connected." Mill Creek Lease alternative, right click otherwise the field will indicate Deer Creek Spot Market on the alternative "Connected." If this field does Biolog Value to Anadromous Fish **Deer Creek Lease** block and choose not change to "Connected" after **Butte Creek Purchase** "Delete Block." performing the menu choices in Box A, Yuba River Option then check to see if "Local Economic Mokelumne River Spot Market Impacts" and "Scientific Information" Scient **Mokelumne River Conjunctive** are connected to the alternatives by Stanislaus River Purchase Implen showing the connection lines (see Merced River Spot Market Box B). If they are not connected, then 1 100 **B.** To show the lines connecting each alternative manually connect them by dragging **D.** Likewise, this field to each scoring element, choose "View/Hide each alternative onto the "Local indicates "Not Rated," Connections to Alternatives" from the CDP menu Economic Impacts" and "Scientific indicating the scores for the bar to uncheck the hide function. Hiding the lines Information" blocks. alternatives have not yet keeps the Hierarchy Graphic less cluttered. been imported into CDP. HOM HILL CHOM HELL Herarchy - ModelT SMART, WEIGHTS X Not Connected X Not Rated 1:23 PM

Policy Criteria Weights

The weights for each Policy Criteria are already entered into the DSM. By double clicking on the "Value to Anadromous Fish" block, a window opens with the policy criteria weights. These weights should not be changed without a stakeholder group process to determine new weights based on new information or changes in policy.

 ★ Conternum DecisionPlus - [H ★ File Edit View Block Level Model ▲ ▲ ▲ ▲ ▲ ▲ ▲ ▲ ▲ ▲ ▲ ▲ ▲ ▲ ▲ ▲ ▲ ▲ ▲	terarchy - C:\DOCUME~I\NLE Results Analysis Window Help 않 ~ 수 밖 통 Snap Undo Navig Options Rate S	E\DESKTOP\USERGU~I\FC Cores % Help	DRSCR~1.CDP]
Goal	Policy Criteria	Scoring Elements	Water Acquisition Alternatives
A. The goal is to rank alternative water acquisitions according to their value to anadromous fish. Value to Anadromous Fish B. This is the range of possible weights for each policy criterion.	SMART Rating - Independent of the second	Direct Method Uncertainty Help omous Fish Negt Note Assign Scale Best 100.00 Weight 63 Very Important 44 Important 100 Critical 46 Important 77 estore Current Ratings mation Help Hierarchy Altern	C. Weights may be entered numerically or qualitatively. For the DSM, the weights are numeric and the qualitative term is provided for descriptive purposes.

Scoring Elements for Cost of Alternatives

When a policy criterion is a "parent" to scoring elements, the weights of the scoring elements may be found by double clicking on the corresponding policy criterion block. Double clicking on the Cost of Alternative policy criterion block brings up a window with the weights of the scoring elements (a description of each scoring element is provided in Table 2 on page 15).

Goal	Policy Criteria	Scoring Elements	Water Acquisition Alternatives	
Normally, only one cost ted scoring element is d in the DSM. This element ald receive a weight of 100, le the other two receive ghts of 0.	SMART Rating - I Method View Rules Options Criterion: Cost of Alterns Scale Information Units Default Worst Duc Subcriterion NFV of Costs Unit Costs (NPV) Biologi Scienti Implen E DK Gancel Info	Direct Method Uncertainty Help Wes Negt No Assign Scale Best 100.00 V/eight 100 Critical 0 Trivial 0 Trivial 0 Trivial 0 Help Hierarchy C Alte	X B. The rankin affected by the elements becchave weights Antelope Creek Conjunctive Mill Creek Spot Market Mill Creek Lease Deer Creek Spot Market Deer Creek Lease Butte Creek Purchase Yuba River Option Mokelumne River Spot Market Mokelumne River Spot Market Merced River Spot Market Merced River Option	gs are no

Scoring Elements for Biological Benefits

Double clicking on the Biological Benefits policy criterion block brings up a window with the weights of the scoring elements.

Scoring Elements for Implementability

Double clicking on the Implementability policy criterion block brings up a window with the weights of the scoring elements.

Description of Scoring Elements

Table 2 contains descriptions of each of the scoring elements and an assumed range each element's score may take on. These ranges may be refined as the DSM is applied to more real world alternatives. The ranges for the three measures of Cost, Life Stage, and Flow Value will most likely require refinement. Unlike the policy criteria and scoring element weights, changes in the range of scores do not need to be done using a group process. However, they must be justified and documented. Sets of alternatives ranked using different ranges for any scoring element may not be compared.

TABLE 2

DSM Scoring Elements, Scales, and Interpretation of Scale

Policy Criteria and Scoring Elements	Scoring Scale (Units)	Interpretation of Scoring Elements
Cost of Alternatives		Three aspects of cost are considered in the DSM, (1) Net present value, (2) unit costs, and (3) annualized costs. Normally only one of the metrics enters the DSM at a time with the maximum weight while the other two metrics are weighted at zero. The cost scales are inverse, where a higher number represents a lower value to anadromous fish. Higher costs imply a particular alternative is relatively more expensive and thus would lower its value to doubling anadromous fish by taking funds away from other acquisitions.
NPV of Costs	20,000 to 0 (NPV in 1000s of dollars)	The net present value (NPV) represents the present value of future costs discounted at the federal rate over the life of the transaction. This is an NPV of one-time up-front costs (e.g., agency negotiation costs, infrastructure, and lease and water rights payments) and annual recurring costs (annual agency administration, annual purchases of water, option fees, and operations and monitoring of water deliveries). These costs do not include biological or ecological monitoring.
Unit Costs (NPV)	250 to 0 (NPV in dollars/AF)	The unit costs of a transaction are calculated by dividing the NPV by the expected number of AF of water to be received over the life of a transaction. Longer term transactions will tend to have lower unit costs as any fixed costs of the transaction such as capital costs are spread out over more units of water.
Annualized Costs	2,000 to 0 (annualized dollars in 1,000s)	Annualized costs are calculated as the up front, one time costs amortized over 20 years (e.g., agency negotiation costs, infrastructure, and lease and water rights payments) plus the undiscounted variable water acquisition costs for the current year. By federal requirements, most water transactions have to be paid for up front. This measure demonstrates what annual costs would be if the transaction could be paid for over time.
Local Economic Impacts	-10 to +10 (constructed scale)	Local economic impacts are those impacts to the community resulting from water being transferred for an acquisition and not used for its original beneficial use within the community. A negative impact represents an economic loss to the community (e.g., agricultural fallowing). A positive impact represents an economic gain (e.g., sale of surplus water).
Biological Benefits		This policy criteria and its scoring elements capture the biological contribution of an acquisition to anadromous fish populations with respect to the size and seasonality of the acquisition, existing instream baseflow for a given water year type and recent and historic production. Two qualitative scoring elements capture effects on ecological functions or conditions within the drainage.
2x Objective- Absolute	0 to 20,000 (numbers of fish based on GrandTab)	This score represents the difference between the doubling goal and estimated recent natural production based on GrandTab or local data. The larger the difference, the farther a drainage is away from its doubling goal. It is assumed that potential acquisitions in drainages with larger deficits would be more beneficial to anadromous fish than in drainages with a smaller deficit. This measure also captures the effect of anadromous fish production within a drainage. Large drainages such as the Feather River and the Tuolumne River have a greater ability to support larger fish populations than smaller drainages such as Butte Creek or Antelope Creek.

Description of Scoring Elements, continued

TABLE 2

DSM Scoring Elements, Scales, and Interpretation of Scale

Policy Criteria and Scoring Elements	Scoring Scale (Units)	Interpretation of Scoring Elements
2x Objective- Distributed	0 to 100 (percent away from doubling goal based on GrandTab)	This score represents the distance a drainage is away from its doubling goal, expressed as a percentage and based on information from GrandTab or local data. The larger the percentage, the farther a drainage is away from its doubling goal. It is assumed that potential acquisitions for drainages with larger percentages would be more beneficial to anadromous fish than in drainages with a smaller deficit. By using a percentage, the effect of the size of a drainage on potential fish production is removed.
Life Stage	0 to 45 (constructed scale)	The monthly timing of water deliveries can affect the benefits realized by anadromous fish. Four life stages are identified by FWS and prioritized in AFRP 1996 and Jewell and Hamilton 2002 for individual drainages. If water is delivered in the most critical Chinook life stage within a drainage, it is given the highest monthly score. The scores are 8, 4, 2, and 1. The monthly scores are totaled for a Life Stage score. Potential acquisitions with higher life stage scores are assumed to be more valuable to anadromous fish.
Flow Value	0 to 4.5 (constructed scale)	Two factors influence the flow value of an acquisition: the size of an acquisition relative to a drainage's base flow in a given water year and the base flow relative to the target flow. It is assumed that the same size acquisition is more valuable when it is large relative to the baseflow or when the baseflow is small relative to the target flow. That is value to anadromous fish is higher for a large acquisition in a drainage with a low baseflow and a high target flow. The same size acquisition is assumed to be less valuable as baseflow increases towards the target. The rate of change of flow value is assumed to increase at a decreasing rate as the base flow of a drainage approaches target flow.
Endangered Species Benefits	0 or 1 (binary scale)	This scoring elements receives a score of 1 if a drainage has spring run Chinook. This gives priority to those streams with endangered spring run. Otherwise, it receives a value of 0. The spring run drainages are Mill, Deer, and Butte creeks.
Ecological Impairment	0 to 10 (constructed scale)	This is a measurement of physical impairment (e.g. barriers, poor water quality) within a drainage caused by factors other than instream flow. A score of 0 represents heavy impairment (none of the potential ecological benefits of a water acquisition are likely to be realized because the impairment cannot be overcome with the additional water) while 10 represents very low or no impairment (all to most potential ecological benefits of additional water will likely to be realized because the additional flow over comes impairments)
Ecological Improvements	0 to 10 (constructed scale)	This is a measurement of additional habitat-related benefits (e.g., cooler water temperature, cleaning gravel) that are realized from water acquisitions that increase instream flows. A score of 10 represents maximum benefits.
Scientific Information	0 to 10 (constructed scale)	This is a measurement of the potential to gain scientific information from studying the effects of increasing flows in a drainage. Long run acquisition agreements tend to offer greater opportunity for study and would receive a higher score.
Implementability		This policy criteria and its scoring elements shed light on how easy or difficult it is to implement a particular water acquisition alternative in terms of institutional requirements, political and public support, and length of time.
Water Right Type	0 to 10 (constructed scale)	The water right type affects how difficult it is to finalize a water transfer. 0 represents a water right that is extremely difficult or impossible to transfer (e.g. riparian or abandoned). 10 represents a validly held and uncontested water right.
Political Acceptance	0 to 10 (constructed scale)	This scoring element represents the political acceptance of a water transfer. 0 represents unanimous rejection by elected officials or political entities, and 10 represents unanimous acceptance.
Public Acceptance	0 to 10 (constructed scale)	This scoring element represents the public acceptance of a water transfer. 0 represents unanimous rejection by all public, non-governmental organizations, and stakeholder groups, and 10 represents unanimous support.
Regulatory Timetable	0 to 10 (constructed scale)	This scoring element represents the time required to address regulatory requirements of a water transfer. 0 represents the most time needed (e.g., first tier Environmental Impact Statement/Environmental Impact Report) and 10 represents the least amount of time needed (e.g., tiered Environmental Assessment)

DSM Workbook—Assumptions, Reports, and Navigation

After setting up the alternatives in CDP, data must be entered into the DSM workbook to generate scores and format scores to export to CDP. A user interface was built into the DSM workbook that contains the worksheets needed to streamline data entry and minimize the chance of inadvertently changing the scoring algorithms. The first tab of this workbook is for global assumptions and navigating the different screens.



Navigation Buttons

The navigation buttons open and close different worksheets containing input data. These worksheets will be discussed in more detail in subsequent sections of this user's guide. A summary of the input data is provided in Table 3 on page 18.

G. Opens and closes a set of 5 worksheets that contain baseflow information for each of the 18 drainages represented in the DSM for the 5 water year types.

H. Opens and closes a worksheet that contains assumed water year sequences based on the historic record for each watershed. The sequences are used to determine a likely stream of costs associated with each acquisition for the calculation of the net present value, unit NPV costs, and annualized costs.

Summary of Input Data

TABLE 3

Input Data for the DSM

Input Data	Description of Input Data	Scoring Element
Unit Price of Water	The asking price of an acquisition alternative should be in the written response to the solicitation. Costs	Net Present Value of Costs
	to acquisitions. Several agencies and entities collect information on water transfers, though price data are	Unit Costs (NPV)
	not always provided or published. The WAP keeps records of their historical acquisitions. The State Water Resources Control Board keeps records of transfers requiring Board approval. CalFed maintains the On Tap database of transfers. The Water Strategist Community publishes information on transfers.	Annualized Costs
Salmon Escapement*	GrandTab is a spreadsheet database of estimated escapement by run, maintained by the CDFG for Clear,	2x Objective – Absolute
	Battle, Mill, Deer, and Butte creeks and Feather, Yuba, Mokelumne, Stanislaus, Tuolumne, and Merced rivers.	2x Objective – Distributed
	Due to budgetary constraints, GrandTab data are not collected for Cow, Cottonwood, Antelope, and Big Chico creeks and Bear, Cosumnes, and Calaveras rivers. CDFG district and regional sources of escapement estimates are used to supplement GrandTab data.	
Life Stage Priorities	Life stage priorities were established based on the 4 life stages identified in AFRP (1996) and information in Jewell and Hamilton (2002). The water delivered in the Chinook life stage that would benefit Chinook the most in a drainage is given the highest priority value. The priority values are 8, 4, 2, and 1. These are values developed for the DSM and may be changed in the future if there is justification for an alternative set of values	Life Stage
Instream Flow Target	The instream flow target is the ideal instream flow for a given life stage of a particular fishery. The difference between this metric and base instream flow is the flow deficit.	Flow Value
	FWS issued draft guidelines in 1996 recommending target flows for multiple fishery needs pursuant to CVPIA for the Feather, Yuba, Bear, Mokelumne, Calaveras, Stanislaus, Tuolumne, and Merced rivers.	
	Jewell and Hamilton produced a staff report in 2002 recommending target flows for Cow, Cottonwood, Antelope, Mill, Deer, Big Chico, and Butte creeks and Cosumnes River.	
	Clear Creek and Battle Creek do not have recommended target flows.	
Instream Base Flow	ECOSIM, a hydrologic simulation model of all major streams and rivers tributary to the Sacramento- San Joaquin Delta, provides monthly and annual base instream flow conditions for all water year types. ECOSIM may be updated to show changes in instream flows associated with long term or permanent water acquisitions; and for simulating how acquisitions affect system operations and meeting environmental standards.	Flow Value
Local Knowledge	Knowledge from local stakeholders and agency staff working on a particular drainage. These data could be quantitative, but most likely be anecdotal or qualitative, but would be the most recent and accurate available.	All the scoring elements
* Escapement is the numb	per of fish successfully reaching spawning areas, having escaped harvest and other causes of mortality.	

Defining Acquisition Alternatives

Summary Information and General Contract Information

Enter descriptive information and scores regarding each alternative into this worksheet. The order of the entries must be identical to the order of the alternatives listed in CDP. Currently the worksheet can accept information for up to 20 alternatives. If there are more than 20 alternatives to be ranked, enter them as sets of 20 or fewer. Export each set of data to the DSM and run them separately. Take all the ranked lists and manually put the alternatives in order by overall score. This is possible because the alternatives are ranked by their scores and the policy criteria and scoring element weights. The alternatives are independent of each other. Care should be taken to keep the assumptions between the two sets of alternatives identical.



Defining Acquisition Alternatives, continued

Initial and Annual Cost

I. The cost of the water is calculated automatically based on the unit cost and volume of water.

J. Input any one-time negotiation or administrative costs associated with acquiring the water.

K. Click on the "+" button to expand the rows for inputting Infrastructure Costs. See page 23 for details regarding the expanded rows.

> **L.** Input any other onetime costs associated with an alternative.



Defining Acquisition Alternatives, continued

Net Present Value, Local Economic Impacts, Biological Benefits, Scientific Information, and Implementability

R. Click on the "+" button to expand the rows associated with calculating NPV. See page 24 for details regarding the expanded rows.

S. The total amount of water received over the life an alternative is calculated automatically based on annual deliveries and duration of the contract.

T. The unit cost of water for an alternative is calculated automatically based on NPV and Total Water (AF) Received.

U. Annualized cost of an alternative is calculated automatically based on the Discount Rate, Initial Costs, and Annual Costs.



V. Input the qualitative Local Economic Impacts score.

W. Fish Need (Absolute), Fish Need (% from Goal), Life Stage, Flow Value scores will be calculated automatically.

X. Input the qualitative Endangered Species, Ecological Impairments, Ecological Improvements, Scientific Information, Water Rights Type, Political Acceptance, Public Acceptance, and Regulatory Timetable scores.

Expanding Monthly Contract Schedule

	N 12	licrosol	crosott Excel - b3_v5.0(Finished Template_r3)_Blank for Screen Captures.xls												
	*	<u>Eile E</u> dit	View Insett Format Iools Data Window Help										on for help 🔹 🗕 🗗 🗙		
		🗃 🖬 🕻	。 (山) (山) (本) (山) (山) (山) (山) (山) (山) (山) (山) (山) (山												
	Aria	d	• 10 • B / U == 書 署 园 \$ % \$ € 18 -20 + A + 画 圖 图 ==												
	ho	me_alt	• <i>f</i> x												
	1 2	A	В	C	DE	F	G	Н	<u>(* 18 - 1</u>	J	K	L	M	N	0
		1		1			-					-		-	
		2	Water Acqu	isition Decision Mod	el										
		4	Define Acquis	ition Alternatives	55 C										
		5													
		6	Reset Planning S	iheet - Clear All Alternatives	Alternative # 1	Alternative # 2	Alternative # 3	Alternative # 4	Alternative # 5	Alternative # 6	Atternative # 7	Atternative # 8	Alternative # 9	Alternative # 10	Atternative # 11
		7	Summary Inform	mation											
		8	Description of Drainage ()A(s	f Alternative atenway	-	-									
		10	Contract Type	1											
		11	Contract Term	n (years)	-	10-					-			10	
		12	General Contra	ct Information		1	1	1	1	1		1			
	Γ.	13	January	ract Schedule (crs):	-	-			-	-		-	-	-	
	•	15	February		-	-								-	
		16	March					A. En	ter the pr	oposed m	ionthly wa	ater delive	eries 👘	-	
	1	18	May		1			in cut	nic feet ne	er second	(cfs) If a 0	is entere	d -	1	
		19	June			-		in car	i cicci pe					-	
		20	July				1	the da	ash remai	ns to indic	cate that t	here wou	ld be	-	
	•	22	Septemb	er				no de	liveries in	those mo	onths.			-	
	•	23	October		-	-	-						-	-	-
		24	Decembe	er er				and the second second		199		1			
	3	26	Contract Amo	unt (AF / year)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
		27	Water Cost (\$	G/AF)	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
		32	Cost	Vh6	had a second sec						n			11 ²	
B . Click the "-" button		33	Initial Costs												
		34	Water		\$	- \$	- \$ -	ş -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$.	\$ -	\$ -
to collapse the monthly	-	39	Infrastructure	Administration	s	- 5	- 5 -	s - s -	\$ - \$ -	\$ - \$ -	s - s -	5 - 5 -	\$	\$ -	5 -
schedule rows.		40	Other		\$	- \$	- \$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$	\$ -	\$ -
		41	0 mm + 1 C to	TOTAL	\$	- \$	- \$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$.	\$ -	<u>\$</u>
		42	Pumping Costs	st (\$ / AF)	s	- \$	- \$ -	s -	\$ -	s -	s -	\$ -	5	- s	s -
		44	Option Fee (\$	(AF)	\$	- \$	- \$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ - -
		45	Administrative	9 Aonitoring	S C	- \$	- \$ -	\$ - c	\$ - c	\$ - c	\$ -	\$	\$ ·	\$ -	\$ -
		47	Other	lonitoring	S	- \$	- \$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$	\$ -	\$ -
		48		TOTAL	\$	- \$	- \$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$	\$ -	\$ -
		49	Cost Forecast	110		. le	. l c	C	le	[c	e	l e .	le .	e	le
		71	Total Water (AF)	Received	*	-		-	-	φ - -	-	-	Ψ		-
		72	Unit Cost (NPV)	per Acre Foot Received	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
		73	Annualized Cost	t Junnanto	\$	- \$	- \$ -	\$ -	\$ -	- \$	\$ -	\$ -	\$	\$ -	\$ -
		74	Local Economic	nic Impacts	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
		76	Biological Bene	efits	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0	3.0	0.0	0.0	5,0	3.0	
		77	Fish Need (Ab	bsolute)											
	-	78	Fish Need (%	from Goal)	4	-	_								
		80	Flow Value												
		81	Endangered S	Species Benefits	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
	14 4	H / Assu	mptions Alternative	res / Chinook Statistics / Life Sta	ge /		1 100	1111					1.		
	Ready														

Expanding Infrastructure Costs

	1 2	-	A	B	C	D	E	F		G
		1		1			10050			
		2		í – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – –						
		3		Water Acquis	ition Decision M	lodel				
		4		Define Acquisiti	on Alternatives					
		5								
		6		Reset Planning She	et - Clear All Alternatio	les	Alternative #1	Alternative :	#2 A	Iternati
		7		Summary Informa	ntion					
	1	8		Description of A	Iternative	A. Fo	or conjunctive u	ise projects		
		9		Drainage / Wate	rway	ente	the pump capa	acity per well		
	1	10		Contract Type	1999 (1999) 1999 (1999)	that	needs to be inst	alled for the		
	. 1	11		Contract Term (/ears)	prop	osed acquisition	n in AF/year.		
		12		General Contract	Information					
		13		Monthly Contra	ct Schedule (cfs):			11 ×		
	+	26		Contract Amour	t (AF / year)		0	0		0
		27		Water Cost (\$ / /	AF)		\$0	\$0	B. Input	the capital cost per
		28		Water Year Type)				new wel	l that must be installed
		32		Cost					for the p	proposed acquisition.
		33		Initial Costs						
		34		Water		3	\$ \	- \$	- \$	
	500 B	35		Negotiation / Ad	ministration	8	3	- \$	- \$	
	[•	36		Pump Capacity	per Well (AF per year)				-	
		37		Capital Cost pe	rWell	8	Sec	- \$	- \$	C. The number of wells
	•	38		Number of Well	s Needed			2	20	needed is automatically
7		39		Infrastructure		8	5	- \$	- \$	calculated using the pump
		40		Other		3	5	- \$	- \$	capacity and the annual
		41			TOT	AL	}	- \$	- \$	deliveries associated with
D. Click the "-" button t	to	42		Annual Costs						
collapse the cost rows.		43		Pumping Cost (\$/AF)	3	5	- \$	- \$	
	()essential in the	44		Option Fee (\$ /)	NF)	3	50. C	- \$	- \$	
		45	-	Administrative	<i>a</i>	9	5	- \$	- \$	

Expanding Net Present Value

There are four basic types of water acquisitions. They are spot market, conjunctive use, long-term leases or purchases, and option contracts. In the DSM workbook, the long term leases and purchases are shown separately because the cost calculations for each are different. Additional discussion may be found in the section "Details of NPV Calculation." Note that in the sense of anadromous fish benefits from acquiring water with either contract type they are similar and thus, considered to be one type of transaction.

The DSM assumes that different acquisitions are utilized in different water year types and, therefore, the pattern of costs reflects the type of acquisition.

- Spot Market—assumed to be utilized in any water year type.
- Conjunctive Use—assumes water is pumped in below normal, dry, and critically dry years.
- Long-term leases and purchase of water rights—assumed to be utilized in all water year types.
- Option contracts—assumed to be exercised in above normal, below normal, dry, and critically dry water year types.

B. Click the "-" button to collapse the NPV rows.

A	A		В	U U	U	E		F	6
1	I								
	2								
	3		Water Acquis	sition Decision Mod	lel				
	1	-	Define Acquicit	ion Alternatives	~				
-	-	-	Denne Acquisti	on Anernalives					
	5							_	_
	6		Reset Planning She	eet - Clear All Alternatives		Alternative #1	Altern	ative # 2	Alternative
	7		Summary Informa	ation					
	8		Description of A	Iternative	П				
	9		Drainage / Wate	erway	1		1		
	10		Contract Type		1				
1	11		Contract Term (vears)	10		1		
Party of	12		General Contract	Information					
1	13	-	Monthly Contra	ct Schedule (cfs):	11		1		F.
1	26		Contract Amour	ot (AE (year)		0		n	0
100	37	-	Water Cost (© (11	¢0	-	en.	0
140	70		Water Cost (#7.	6r)	11	ΦŪ		φυ	40
	20	_	Water rear type	3	-				
100	32		Cust		-				
1000	33		Initial Costs		-		()-		1.2
1	34		Water	-		\$ -	\$	-	\$
1 150	35		Negotiation / Ad	Iministration		\$ -	\$		\$
Canal Provide	39		Infrastructure			\$ -	\$	-	\$
	40	u îi	Other			\$ -	\$		\$
1 and	41	į.		TOTAL		\$ -	\$	1	\$
and a	42	1	Annual Costs			-			
	43	5	Pumping Cost ((\$/AF)		\$ -	\$	-	\$
	44		Option Fee (\$ / /	AF)	Ш	\$ -	\$	-	\$
1 AV	45		Administrative		1	\$ -	\$		\$
N.S.	46	1	Operations, Mor	nitoring	1	\$ -	\$	-	\$
100	47		Other			\$ -	\$	4	\$
The second	48			TOTAL		\$ -	\$		\$
1	49		Cost Forecast						
123	50		Year	1		\$ -	\$		\$
2	51		Year	2		e		-	
1	52		Year	3	ш				
1	53		Year	4	Ш				
	54		Year	5		A. T	he stre	eam of	costs ov
to.	55		Year	6		dura	tiono	f the al	ternative
1	56		Year	7		uula	lion 0	i the al	cinative
3	57		Year	8		auto	matic	ally bas	sed on W
13	58		Year	9		(\$/^	E) the	nrono	vilab ha
	59		Year	10		(3/A)	, the	piopo	seu uelli
0100	60	-	Voar	11		and	the ty	pe of a	cquisitio
	61		Vear	12					
20 10	62		Veer	12			1	15	
1	62		rear	14		-			
1	63	-	Year	14					
1	64	2	Year	15			5	5	
1	65		Year	16		-		-	
	66		Year	17		-		-	
1	67		Year	18		-		-	
and a second	68	4	Year	19		-		-	
1	69		Year	20		-	1	-	-
12	70		Net Present Value)		\$ -	\$	-	\$
ALC: NO	71		Total Water (AF) F	Received		-		-	
1000	72		Unit Cost (NPV) p	er Acre Foot Received		\$ -	\$	-	\$
1	73		Annualized Cost	CONCERNMENT OF CONCERNMENT		\$ -	\$	-	\$
1.2	ACCOUNTS OF					and the second se	ALC: NOT THE OWNER OF THE OWNER OWNER OF THE OWNER OWN		distant in the second se

Chinook Statistics

These data are from the AFRP, DFG, and local experts regarding Chinook escapement and the doubling goal of each drainage.

A. GrandTab data are available from the California Department of Fish and Game, Native Anadromous Fish and Watershed Branch, Native Anadromous Fish Team, Sacramento, CA 95814, (916) 327-8840. Based on 26 April 2004 Version of GrandTab)

B. Spring run numbers are used in the DSM when they are available, otherwise the drainage is assumed to be a fall run.

4	Drainage	Chindok Race	CVPIA 2X Goal Natural Production ¹⁰	Baseline Natural Production	Baseline Escapement	Baseline Conversion Ratio	Recent Escapement	Recent Natural Production	Recent Pr Relative to Go	oduction CVPIA 2X al	Recent Es Relativ Base	capement ve to 2X eline	Fish Need (Absolute)	Fish Need (% from Goal)
5								100.000.000	#	%	%	#	#	%
7	Clear Creek	fall run	7,100	3,600	1,600	2.25	9,227	20,761	13,661	292%	288%	6,027	-	0%
8	Cow Creek	fall run ¹	4,600	2,300	1,400	64	1,000	1,643	(2,957)	36%	36%	(1,800)	2,957	64%
9	Cottonwood Creek	fall run 1	5,900	3 000	1,600	1.88	1,000	1,875	(4,025)	32%	31%	(2,200)	4,025	68%
10	Battle Creek	fall run ²	10,000	5,000	18,000	0.28	172,490	47,914	37,914	479%	479%	136,490	-	0%
11		llate fall run ⁹	550	2'0	1,000	0.27	4,280	1,156	606	210%	214%	2,280	1	0%
12	Antelope Creek	fall run 1	720	361	190	1.89			(720)	0%	0%	(380)	720	100%
13	Mill Creek	fall run ³	4,200	2,100	1,100	1.91	1,801	3,553	(647)	85%	85%	(339)	647	15%
14		spring run	4,400	2,200	800	2.75	942	2,591	(1,810)	59%	59%	(658)	1,810	41%
15	Deer Creek	fall run *	1,500	760	410	1.85	270	500	(1,000)	33%	33%	(550)	1,000	67%
16		spring run	6,500	3,300	1,300	2.54	1,779	4,516	(1,984)	69%	68%	(821)	1,984	31%
17	Butte Creek	fall run ⁵	1,500	760	420	1.81	1,985	3,592	2,092	239%	236%	1,145	-	0%
18		spring run	2,000	1,000	360	2.78	8,474	23,539	21,539	1177%	1177%	7,754		0%
19	Big Crico Creek	fall run *	800	400	240	1.67	100	167	(533)	21%	21%	(380)	633	79%
20	Feather River	fall run *	1/0,000	86,000	49,000	1.76	98,251	172,441	2,44	101	E			
21	Yuba River		00,000	33,000	1,000	2.54	24,110	61,202	(4,/98)	939	E. Esca	pement	is the	
22	Bear River	tall run	450	220	100	2.20	200	440	(10)	96.4	populat	tion of a	adult fisł	ו
23	Mokelumne River	Tall run -	9,300	4,700	3,200	1.42	1,121	11,005	1,705	118	that ave	hid or "e	scane"	
24	Cosumnes River	tall run *	3,300	1,600	10	2.11	300	632	(2,668)	199	that ave		scape	
25	Staniclaus River	fall run	2,200	1,100	410	2.08	6 4 9 0	14.950	(2,200)	0%0	sources	of mor	tality to	
20	Tuolum		22,000	000	9,000	2.23	0,400	19,030	(19.421)	499	success	fully arr	ive at th	eir
28	Merced C This	ic the de	ubling goo						(3.684)	809	natal cr	awning	draina	205
29		s is the up	ubility yoa		D. This	is the Al	-RP (1995) <mark>-</mark>			11/21/21/21	awining	Jurania	yes.
30	Notes: natura	l producti	on (ottsprii	ng	estima	te of nati	ural Chino	ook 📘			Baseline	e escap	ement is	s an
31	¹ Cow of adu	lts that sp	awn witho	ut stim	produc	tion duri	na the 10	067 <u> </u>	onitorina pr	oaram	average	e escape	ement fo	or the
32	² Battle tho acc	istanco of	- hatchor	() urren		.uon uun	ing the h	907-	nerv and in i	iver fis	1067 10		lino nor	ind
33	³ Mill O	istance of	anatchery) Iv	1991 "k	baseline"	period.				1907-19	191 Dase	inte per	iou
34	⁴ Deer establi	shed by A	FRP (1995)								reporte	d by AF	RP (199	5).
35	5 Buttte Latoon					_								
30	⁶ Big Chico Crock	urrent EBC or	conomont estin	average only	Word (CDEC): arook haa	no monitoria	a program		-				
20	7 Deer Diversek (capement estim	iateu by Pau	I ward (CDFG	ON seek flas	no monitorin	ig program						-
3/	Bear River current	FRC escaper	nent per John N	elson/vvade J	Jonnson (CDF	G), creeк ha	s no monitor	ing program						-
38	Cosumnes River o	urrent FRC es	capement per F	tob Titus (CD	FG); river has	no monitorir	ig program							-
1000	the second state of the se	Int I EDC occo	to make a subject of the sub-		1000									
39	Battle Creek curre		ipement is 4 yea	ar average on	iy									

Chinook Statistics, continued

Pecent (1999 2003) versus Baseline (1967 1991) Chinook Statisitics, by Drainage and Pac

F. This is Baseline Natural Production divided I Escaper a value indicate escaper counted fish. A h indicate and/or hatcher This hist (1967-19 constan of calcu Natural

ivided by Baseline	Receive(1990-	2000) versi	us Dasenin	C (1507-16	Abaaluta	on otatio	Cool	Dramage	c and re	100			Rece
scapement. In general,		· ·	alculation of	I FISH Neeu	• Absolute a	nu 70 moni (GUar						Prod
value lower than 1			(Based o	n 26 April 20	04 Version of	GrandTab)	2000000	ana	1				Esca
dicates hatchery	CVPIA 2X Goal	Baseline	Baseline	Baseline	Recent	Recent	Recent Pr Relative to	CVPIA 2X	Recent Es Relativ	Hapement He to 2%	Fish Need	Fish Need (% from	is no
scapements were	Production ¹⁰	Natural Production	Escapement	Ratio	Escapement	Production	Go) al	Bas	eline	(Absolute)	Goal)	the [
ounted with native							#	%	%	#	#	%	
sh. A high value	/,100	3,600	1,600	2.5	9,227	20,761	13,661	292%	288%	6,027	2 057	1% 64 X	_
dicates high mortality	5,900	3.000	1,400	1.88	1,000	1,043	(4.025)	3,96	31%	(2,200)	4.025	68%	
ad/or low to po	10,000	5,000	18,000	0.28	172,490	47,914	37,914	479 %	479%	136,490	1	0%	
	1 ⁹ 550	270	1,000	0.27	4,280	1,156	606	210%	214%	2,280		0%	1/
atchery escapements.			190	1.89	-	-	(720)	0%	0%	(380)	720	1009	K. Thes
his historic ratio	G. This	is a	100	1.91	1, 61	3,553	(647)	85%	85%	(339)	1 810	15%	fish nee
967-1991) is held	running	average	of 410	H. Thi	s is an est	imate	(1,0	. These	are the	د	1,000	67%	met or e
onstant for purposes	escaper	nent over	- 300	of "cur	rent" nat	ural	(1,9	difforon	co boti	- Noon	1,984	31 %	product
f calculating Recent	the mo	st recent	420	produc	tion der	ived	2,0			veen	-	0%	have no
atural Production.	6 years	of the	240	by mu	ltinlving t	ho	(6	Recenti	Naturai		633	79%	Fish Nee
	rocord	or the	od 000	Deceli	convo		2,4	roduct	ion and	d the		0%	offichy
21 Yuba River fall run	lecolu,	as reporte	ooo 000	Baselli	ie Convei	sion	(4,7	doublin	g goal.	A	4,798	7%	OF HSH y
22 Bear River fall run '	In Gran	diab. The	se <u>100</u>	Ratio b	by Recent		H	oositive	numbe	er or	10	2%	produce
23 Mokelumne River I fall run *	are the	GrandTab	760	Escape	ement. Re	ecent	1,1	percent	greate	r than 1	00 2669	0%	(1995) d
25 Calaveras River winter run	values t	hat shoul	d be	Natura	I Product	ion	(2,2	ndicate	es the a	oal has	2,200	1009	Fish Nee
26 Stanislaus River fall run	verified	as the mo	ost 800	may be	e more		(7,1	neen m	≙t		7,150	33%	0%) is th
27 Tuolumne River fall run 29 Marcad Divar	current	each time	ethe 🎬	precise	-lv estima	ated by	(19,4	occiriii	Ct.		3,421	51%	natural
29	DSM is	run	500	consid	erina cur	rent	(3,004)	00.0	00.00	(1,0.72)	3,004	20%	be achie
30 Notes:	Donnis	arn.		mortal	ity octim	atoc							
31 ¹ Cow and Cottonwood creeks	s' current FRC esca	apement estim	nated by Colle	morta	ity estim	ales	nitoring pr	rogram			-		
32 ² Battle Creek, Feather, Mokel	lumne, and Merce	d rivers' currer	it FRC escape	and cu	rrent hat	chery	ry and in	river fish					
33 ³ Mill Creek current FRC esca	pement is 3 year a	average only		operat	ions.								
34 * Deer Creek current FRC esc	apement is 1 year	(1998) only							<u> </u>				
35 Buille Creek current FRC es	Capement is 4 yea	ar average onig mated by Dau	l I Ward (CDEG): crook hac	no monitorin	a program	-						
37 7 Bear River current ERC escal	nement ner John N	lelson/Wade .	Johnson (CDF	G): creek has	is no monitori	g program							
38 ⁸ Cosumnes River current FRC	C escapement per	Rob Titus (CD	FG); river has	no monitorii	ng program								
39 9 Battle Creek current LFRC e	scapement is 4 ye	ar average on	ly										
40 ¹⁰ Production = escapement + or	cean harvest + river	harvest											

J. These are the difference between ent Natural duction and Baseline apement. This term ot used directly in DSM.

e are the expression of ed. Drainages that have exceeded their natural tion doubling goals fish need. Absolute ed is the number et to be naturally ed to meet the AFRP loubling goal. Percent ed (if greater than he proportion of the production goal yet to eved.

Life Stage

The Life Stage worksheet documents the assumed life stage priorities. These life stage priorities (8, 4, 2, 1) were arbitrarily assigned and may be refined as the DSM is applied to more real world alternatives and insights are gained. The changes do not need to take place in a stakeholder group process, but they must be justified and documented.

^		C	D	Prior	ity Deliv	ery Mon	ths Acc	ording	to Chinoc	k Life S	tage	(9)	IN .		
Drainage	Race	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	N	otes and Life Stage Source
Antelope Creek	SRC	1	1	1	1	1	8	8	8	8	1	1	1	Jewell a	nd Hamilton, 2002
Battle Creek	SRC					1 2010 23								No flow	targets established in AFRP 1995
Bear River	FRC	8	8	8	2	.2	2	4	4	1	1	1	1	AFRP, 1	996
Big Chico Creek	FRC											_		No flow	targets established in AFRP 1995
Butte Creek	SRC	4	4	4	1	1	1	8	8	8	- 2	2	2	AFRP, 1	996
Calaveras River	WRC	2	1	1	1	8	8	8	4	4	4	2	2	AFRP, 1	996
Clear Creek	FRC								i ir		i ii			No flow	targets established in AFRP 1995
Cosumnes River	FRC	8	8	8	1	1	1	8	8	1	1	1	1	Jewell a	nd Hamilton, 2002
Cottonwood Creek	FRC								1.0					No flow	targets established in AFRP 1995
Cow Creek	FRC	8	1	1	1	1	8	8	8	8	1	1	1	Jewell a	nd Hamilton, 2002
Deer Creek	SRC	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	8	8	1	1	1	🚽 Jewell a	nd Hamilton, 2002
Feather River	FRC	8	8	8	2	2	2	4	4	1	1	1	1	AFRP, 1	996
Merced River	FRC	8	8	8	2	2	2	4	4	1	1	1	1	AFRP, 1	996
Mill Creek	SRC	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	8	8	1	1	1	Jewell a	nd Hamilton, 2002
Mokelumne River	FRC	8	8	8	2	2	2	4					1	AFRP, 1	996
Stanislaus River	FRC	8	8	8	2	2	2	4	B. The	Priority	2 stage		1	AFRP, 1	996
Tuolumne River	FRC	8	8	8	2	2	2	4	idontifu	din Ar			1	AFRP, 1	996
Yuba River	FRC	8	8	8	2	2	2	4	identilite		NF (199	0).	C. T iden	he Priori tified in	ity 3 life stage AFRP (1996).
Scale:	8	Priority 1	in AFRP (1	996) or onl	y target in J	ewel & Har	nilton (2001	22							
	4	Priority 2	in AFRP (1	996)									-		
	2	Priority 3	in AFRP (1	996)											D The Drievity 4 life
	1	Priority 4	in AFRP (1	996)		-									D. The Priority 4 life s
	1	Priority	4 placeholo	ler. After fu	irther stud	y, the U.S. I	ish & Wild	life Servic	e will provid	e life stage	values for	these mon	ths and dra	ainages	identified in AFRP (19
		Streams	with no AF	RP-detured	flow target	s To evalue	te acquieit	tions for th	ese drainade	s life stan	e informatio	n must he	entered	President -	

A. This is the highest life stage priority weight. It is used for AFRP (1996) identified Priority 1 life stage and the single life stage identified in Jewell and Hamilton (2002). **E.** For the drainages that only have one life stage identified (Antelope, Cosumnes, Cow, Deer, and Mill) a priority weight of 1 is used in the other months to indicate that providing water in these months has inherent value even though specific species or habitat benefits have not been explicitly identified. This weight acts as a placeholder until the FWS identifies Chinook life stages for these drainages.

Example of Populated Alternatives

This is an example of what the Alternatives worksheet would look like populated with data for potential water acquisitions. The four types of alternatives are represented. The long term lease and water right purchase examples are shown separately because their costs are calculated differently, but they are similar enough in implementation that they are considered one type of acquisition. Note that the text in cells requiring input data are in blue and if a cell does not apply to a type acquisition, the cell is grey. Values that are automatically calculated are in black.



Example of Populated Contract Schedule

This is an example of the Monthly Contract Schedule populated with data. The amount available each month may vary and this information would be in the response to the solicitation of willing sellers.

1 2	1 2 3 4 5	A	B C Water Acquisition Decision Mod Define Acquisition Alternatives	A. a sp pur ava	E This represe pot market rchase of 25 illable in Jun	F nts cfs e.	B. 5 c su mo Ma be	This represents of groundwards bstitution in the onths of April ar ay so that water eleft instream.	s H ater e nd rmay		
	6		Reset Planning Sheet - Clear All Alternatives	At	ernative #1	Alternative # 2		Alternative # 3	Alternative # 4	Alternative # 5	At
	7		Summary Information								
	8		Description of Alternative	Spot 1	Market Example	Conjunctive Example	le	Lease Example	WR Purchase Example	Options Example	
	9		Drainage / Waterway		Aill Creek	Antelope Creek		Deer Creek	Butte Creek	Merced River	
	10		Contract Type		Spot	Conjunctive		Lease	Purchase	Option	
	11		Contract Term (years)	ale .	1	20		20	20	20	
	12		General Contract Information							e	
	13		Monthly Contract Schedule (cfs):								-
• ••	14		January		100	-	Π			2.15	
	15		February			-		-		2.15	
1979	16		March					4.90	1	2.15	
10.60	17		April			5.0	0	4.90	6.00	2.15	
	18		May		4 -	5.0	0	4.90	6.00	2.15	
	19		June		25.00	-		4.90	6.00	2.15	
	20		July		-	-		-	6.00	2.15	
1	21		August			-			6.00	2.15	
793	22		Ostabar			5		1-	6.00	2.10	
	23		November		-			Ĩ.		2.10	
1000	25		December		10.00					2.15	
-1	26		Contract Amount (AE (year)	100	C. This re	presents a	T	1 186	2178	1.557	
	27	T	Water Cost (\$ / AF)		long-term	lease for		\$60	\$1.607	\$90 E.	This represents an
	28		Water Year Type	be	49 cfs of	water in		below normal	below normal	below norm	otion contract for
	32		Cost		the mont	hs of March				2.	15 cfs each month
	33		Initial Costs		through	une		D. This rep	presents	of	the vear.
								a purchase rights to di 6.0 cfs fron September	of water vert up to n April to r.	-	-

Example of Populated Infrastructure Costs

If capital costs would be incurred for an alternative, they would be documented here.

1 2		A	₿	C	D	E	F	G	Н		
	1										
	2		and the second second second								
	3		Water Acquis	sition Decision Mo	del						
	4		Define Acquisit	ion Alternatives							
	5		1								
	6		Reset Planning She	eet - Clear All Alternative	s	Alternative # 1	Alternative # 2	Alternative # 3	Alternative # 4	Alternative # 5	Al
	7		Summary Informa	ation			Cale o shishashiba	unition of Constitution	Constant and a		
	8		Description of A	Iternative		Spot Market Example	Conjunctive Example	Lease Example	WR Purchase Example	Options Example	
	9		Drainage / Wate	erway		Mill Creek	Antelope Creek	Deer Creek	Butte Creek	Merced River	
	10		Contract Type			Spot	Conjunctive	Lease	Purchase	Option	
	11		Contract Term (years)		1	20	20	20	20	
2	12		General Contract	Information							
101	13		Monthly Contra	ct Schedule (cfs):					Ú		
+	26		Contract Amour	nt (AF / year)		1,488	605	1,186	2,178	1,557	
- arres	27		Water Cost (\$ /	AF)		\$150		\$60	\$1,607	\$90	
	28		Water Year Type	3		below normal	below normal	below normal	below normal	below normal	
	32		Cost						-	-	
	33		Initial Costs				1010		2		87 TH
	34		Water			\$ 223,140	Φ	\$ 1,422,863	\$ 3,499,807	\$-	\$
	35		Negotiation / Ad	ministration		\$ 50,000	\$ 250,000	\$ 100,000	\$ 100,000	\$ 50,000	\$
L.	36		Pump Capacity	per Well (AF per year)			1,250				
	37		Capital Cost pe	r Well			\$ 750,000				\$
	38		Number of Well	s Needed			1			-	
	39		Infrastructure			\$ -	\$ 750,000	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$
	40		Other			\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	· ·	Φ -	\$
	41			TOTA		\$ 273,140	\$ 1,000,000	\$ 1,522,863	\$ 3,599,807	\$ 50,000	\$
	42		Annual Costs		19.00					Arabati (Listasti) - 2	

A. Conjunctive use alternatives are likely to incur well costs.

B. If capital costs, such as for conveyance, are needed for other types of acquisition, they would be input here.

Details of Net Present Value Calculation

	1 2	1000	A	В	C L	n E	F.		G		н		-	
		1											C. Leas	56
		2											in vear	c
		3		Water Acquisit	ion Decision Model								in year	č
		4		Define Acquisition	n Alternatives								are higi	n
		5											costs ar	re
		6		Reset Planning Sheet	- Clear All Alternatives	Alternative # 1	Alternativ	e#2	Alternative # 3	A	Iternative # 4	4	admini	
		7	1	Summary Informati	on	Parcerroutice and	Parcertown	0.11 2					aurini	2
		8	_	Description of Alte	mative	Spot Market Example	Conjunctive	Example	Lease Example	WR P	urchase Example	Or	mainte	n
		9	-	Drainage / Waterw	/av	Mill Creek	Antelope	Creek	Deer Creek	E	Butte Creek	N	AND MICH	
		10		Contract Type		Spot	Conjun	tive	Lease	1	Purchase		Option	ſ
		11		Contract Term (ye	ars)	1	20		20		20		20	
		12		General Contract In	formation									
		13		Monthly Contract	Schedule (cfs):			1						
	•	26		Contract Amount (AF / year)	1,488	605		1,186		2,178		1,557	Ĩ
		27		Water Cost (\$ / AF)	\$150			\$60	1	\$1,607	<mark> </mark>	\$90	
		00		Valotov Moos Timo	_	below normal	below no	irmal	below normal	b	elow normal	be	low normal	
	Δ.	Sno	nt m	arket costs are	all									
		spc					2							
	Inc	urre	ed Ir	h the year of th	e	\$ 223,140	\$		\$ 1,422,863	\$	3,499,80	\$	-	1
	trai	nsad	ctio	n and therefor	e n	\$ 50,000	\$ 2	50,000	\$ 100,000	\$	100,000	\$	50,000	2
	210	dic		ntod 1 yoar		\$ -	\$ 7	50,000	\$ -	\$		\$	-	2
	are	uis	cou	nteu i year.		<u></u> -	\$	-	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-	
1		41			TOTAL	\$ 273,140	\$ 1,0	00,000	\$ 1,522,863	\$	3,599 307	\$	50,000	
		42	1	Annua. Costs						-		-		_
		43	2 5	Pumping Cost (\$)	AF)		\$	25						Los Los
	3	44		Option FE9 (\$) AF)	e 25.000	æ	25.000	E 40.000		10.000	\$	6	Ê
		45		Administrative	aring	\$ 25,000	\$ ¢	25,000	\$ 10,000	\$	10,000	5	25,000	
		40		Other	oning	\$ 10,000	Ф С	10,000	\$ 10,000	ф С	10,000	Ф С	10,000	
		48	-	Caller	ΤΟΤΑΙ	\$ 35.000	¢	50 124	\$ 20,000	2	20.000	\$	42 783	Ē
		49	-	Cost Forecast	TOTAL	* 00,000	Ψ	50,124	\$ 20,000	Į Ψ	20,000	· ·	12,100	-
	Γ.	50		Year 1		\$ 308,140	\$ 1.0	50.124	\$ 1,542,863	\$	3.619.807	\$	232.870	
	•	51		Year 2				50,124	20,000	1	20,000		182,870	Ĩ
		houseday		Year 3				50,124	20,000		20,000		182,870	í.
B . Initial costs are h	hiah	or fa	or	Year 4		-		-	20,000		20,000		7,783	/
· · ·			51	Year 5		-		and the	20,000		20,000		7,783	
conjunctive use acc	quisi	tior	าร	Year 6		-		50,124	20,000		20,000		182,87J	
if there is an infrast	ruct	ure		Year 7		-		50,124	20,000		20,000		182,970	
nood Subcoquent	anni	ادر		Year 8		-		-	20,000		20,000	-	182,870	ŀ
need. Subsequent a		Jai		Year 9		-		-	20,000		20,000	-	18 2,870	
costs are composed	d of			Year 1	J.		-	50 1 24	20,000	<mark>/</mark>	20,000	-	402.970	ŀ
pumping and oper	atio	ns		Vear 1				30,124	20,000	<u> </u>	20,000	-	7 783	r
and monitoring co	***			Year 1	3		1	50 1 24	20,000		20,000		182 870	Ē
and monitoring cos	sts.			Year 1	4				20.00		20,000		7,783	ľ
Conjunctive use is a	assu	me	d	Year 1	5	-		50,124	20,0/10		20,000		182,870	Ē
to be implemented	lin			Year 1	6	-		-	20,000		20,000		182,870	Ē
k alaura a sur la l				Year 1	7	-		-	20, <mark>1</mark> 00		20,000		7,783	Ĩ
below normal, dry,	and			Year 1	В	-		50,124	20,000		20,000		7,783	ĺ
critically dry years.	ther	efo	re	Year 1	9			50,124	2 <mark>0</mark> ,000		20,00 J		182,870	
not every year will	have			Year 2	0			50,124	2,000		(3,479,8 ,7)		182,870	L
not every year will i	lave	a		Net Present Value		\$ 308,140	1,3	57,195	\$ 1,777,350	\$	2,560,009	\$	1,641,221	Ê
cost associated wit	h thi	S												1
type of alternative.														

ase contracts must be paid ar one, therefore initial costs igh. Subsequent annual are composed of recurring nistrative and operations and tenance costs.

> **D.** Upfront and recurring costs for water rights purchases are similar to leases. An exception is the credit in year 20 for the purchase price of the water less the recurring costs in the 20th year. This represents the residual value of the water right, assuming it may be re-sold or put to another environmental use. Any water right purchased by the FWS represents real property, unlike contracts which end after a period. The residual value captures the benefit of real property and the flexibility of the FWS to use or sell this property.

> > **E.** For option contracts, initial costs are lower because water is paid for when the contract is exercised. In years where the option to purchase water is exercised (above normal, below normal, dry, and critically dry), water costs are higher. In years when water is not purchased, only the option fee is paid.

Hidden Worksheets

There are several worksheets that are hidden to keep the data input interface less cluttered. To unhide these sheets, use the "Reports" and "Navigation" buttons on the Assumptions worksheet of the DSM workbook. The user may also unhide the sheets from the Microsoft Excel menu bar by choosing "Format/Sheet/Unhide." The hidden sheets are:

- Export Data to CDP
- Instream Flow Targets for each drainage
- Wet, Above Normal, Below Normal, Dry, and Critically Dry water year base flows and flow deficits relative to the target flows for each drainage
- Assumed Water Year Sequences
- Flow Value Calculations for Alternatives 1 through 10
- Flow Value Calculations for Alternatives 11 through 20

CDP Export Data Worksheet

CDP Export Data worksheet is the sheet that formats the scores for each alternative for export into CDP, the decision science software.

A. Scores are shown fo	r	B33 <i>→ f</i> ×					-	
alternatives must be in		A	В	С	D	E	F	
the same order across t	he	CDP Export Data						
top of this worksheet a they are in CDP.	s 3	Attributes	Spot Market Example, Mill, Spot	Example, Antelope, Conjunctive	Lease Example, Deer, Lease	WR Purchase Example, Butte, Purchase	Options Example, Merced, Option	
	4	NPV of Costs (000s)	300	1,357	1,777	2,560	1,641	Ĩ
	5	Unit Costs (NPV)	207	204	75	59	81	
	6	Annualized Costs (000s)	323	133	146	318	47	
	7	Local Economic Impacts	-1.00	00:5	0.00	-1.00	-6.00	
	8	Fish Need (Absolute)	1,810	720	1,984	1.0	3,684	
	9	Fish Need (% from Goal)	0.41	1.00	0.31	0.00	0.20	
	10	Life Stage	0.31	0.40	0.69	0.67	1.00	
Check this box to	11	Flow Value	0.091	0.526	0.866	4.743	0,372	<u> </u>
which alternatives	12	Endangered Species Benefits	1.00	0.00	1.00	1.00	C. C	lick this
est scores for each	13	Ecological Impairments	2.00	2.00	10.00	2.00	butte	on to clo
ring element. This	14	Ecological Improvements	2.00	8.00	8.00	2.00	orhi	de this
hlights the strengths	15	Scientific Information	0.00	8.00	8.00	2.00	WORK	sneet.
weaknesses of the	16	Water Rights Type	10.00	8.00	7.00	7.00	9.00	-
ernative.	1/	Political Acceptance	10.00	6.00	8.00	2.00	.6.00	
	18	Public Acceptance	10.00	6.00	8.00	8.00	8.00	
	19	Regulatory limetable	10.00	2.00	6.00	8.00	4.00	1
	20							
	21	Data Formate						

Instream Target Flow—Below Normal Water Year

The instream target flow is based on the water acquisition priorities established in AFRP 1996 for Chinook and other anadromous fishes. Given a drainage, water year type, and priority level, ECOSIM produces feasible target flows in accordance with the Central Valley Project and State Water Project Coordinated Operations Agreement and in compliance with Bay-Delta Accord standards and CVPIA (b)(2) criteria. The specific target flows will be output by ECOSIM and the DSM user must coordinate with the ECOSIM modeler to receive this output. The specific target flows must be input into the Instream Target Flow table manually.

Below is a table of target flows for the Below Normal water year. These target flows may be used as default flow targets to run the DSM for generalized rankings of alternatives. The Below Normal water year was chosen because it is a year type in which obtaining additional flows becomes increasingly beneficial for anadromous fishes. The interpretation of the rankings would be limited to the Below Normal water year and the assumptions documented in the Notes and References column. Generalized rankings are useful for strategic planning purposes with respect to water acquisition and budgeting.

Close	ciose		(for a	Water	tream Ta Year in T	arget Flo AF)	W	RJ	ESTORE Def	ault Targets	S CLEAR	Default Flow	/ Targets		
Drainage	Race	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Notes and References	
Antelope Creek	SRC	-		2.72	-		1.6	2.0	3.1	1.5		-	-	Flow targets set by Andy Hamilton/Dick Jewell USFWS - J	une 25, 2002
Battle Creek ^{1,2}	SRC		-	+	-		+	1 .	-		-			No targete set. Diversion alteration is plan here.	
Bear River	FRC	13.5	13.1	13.5	14.5	13.3				3.6	3.7		cluip a t	hic P, through priority 6.	
Big Chico Creek ¹	FRC	-	-		4	-	C. Clic	king th	nis			D. Cli	cking t	IIIS Illy limited by flows. No acquisition flow poten	tial. Targets = zero.)
Butte Creek ²	SRC	6.2	6.0	6.2	6.2	5.6	buttor	n restor	res the	6.0		butto	n clear	Sthe set by Andy Hamilton/Dick Jewell USFWS - Ji	une 25, 2002
Calaveras River	WRC	9.1	4.2	4.4	4.4	10.4	defeul	+ala	-	11.7	12.1	nre-n	onulat	A P, through priority 11.	
Clear Creek ^{1,2}	FRC	1425	-	-	-	4	deraui	t value	5.				opulati	resolution	
Cosumnes River	FRC	9.2	8.9	9.2		1		59.5	61.5			target	s, cleai	TING vs. Flows can be obtained only through redu	ed GW pumping (unlike:
Cottonwood Creek 1	FRC	-		2.40		-		-	+	-	-	the w	orkshe	et to III limited by flows. No acquisition flow poten	tial. Targets = zero.)
Cow Creek	FRC	3.1		(4)			1.6	3.0	3.1	1.5	-	hano	pulato	d with set by Andy Hamilton/Dick Jewell USFWS - Ju	une 25, 2002
Deer Creek	SRC	4		141			-	-	9.8	9.5	-	ne ho	pulate	set by Andy Hamilton/Dick Jewell USFWS - Ji	une 25, 2002
Feather River ²	FRC	153.8	148.8	153.8	153.8	138.8	153.8	148.8	153.8	65.5	67.7	specif	ic flow	targets. nal year ECOSIM input.	
Merced River	FRC	17.1	25.1	25.9	18.6	16.8	18.6	47.8	49.4	15.4	15.9			w Normal year ECOSIM input.	
Mill Creek	SRC	-	-		-	- The	•	9.3	9.7	9.3	- 1			Flow targets set by Andy Hamilton/Dick Jewell USFWS - J	ine 25, 2002
Mokelumne River ²	FRC	18.3	19.5	20.1	18.0	16.3	18.0	26.0	23.2	16.3	6.6	6.6	6.4	Level 4. Below Normal year ECOSIM input.	
Stanislaus River	FRC	12.3	17.3	17.8	48.0	43.3	48.0	102.9	106.4	35.7	37.5	38.7	35.7	Level 3. Below Normal year ECOSIM input.	
Tuolumne River	FRC	25.8	26.2	27.1	18.5	16.7	18.5	70.8	84.3	14.9	15.4	15.4	14.9	Level 5. Below Normal year ECOSIM input.	
Yuba River	FRC	30.7	29.7	30.7	30.9	27.9	30.9	49.3	50.9	36.7	27.0	27.0	26.1	Level 4. Below Normal year ECOSIM input.	

E. These drainages do not have AFRP or FWS established target flows.

F. These drainages appear to have met their AFRP doubling goal, according to the April 2004 GrandTab data. Water acquired for these systems would not have flow value for Chinook salmon, but would benefit other species and habitat overall. To model "0" flow value for any drainage, input Target Flow as a "0"



priorities from AFRP 1996.

35

Base Flows and Flow Deficits

Base flow levels should remain fairly constant across DSM runs, but may change due to system operations, long-term WAP leases, or water rights purchases. Flow deficits are calculated as the difference between target flows and base flows. Before the DSM is run, the user should confirm that the base flow and flow deficit data are current.



Detailed Flow Value Calculations

The Flow Value score is calculated based on the size of the proposed acquisition, target flow, and base flow. The calculations are made automatically based on data input by the user. Note that rows have been hidden in the graphic in order to show all the components of flow value on one page.

H

M

G

	7	Close						A	Iternati	ve # 1						
A. Click this button	2							M	ill Creek	, Spot						
to close or hide this	3		Proposed Ac	quistion (A	(F)											
to close of finde this	4		CFS:		-		-	-	-	-	-	25.00		-		25.00
worksneet.	5	Year	Water Taken?	0.4	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Total
	6	1	Yes	-		1						1,488	-	1.5	1	1,488
	7	2	No			-	-	-	-	-	-	0	-	-		0
	8	3	No		D							c	-	-	5.	0
	9	4	NO		B. The	e propo	sed acq	Juisition	volum	e is sho	wn in c	ts 📕	-	-	5.	U
	11	5	No		and Al	The fl	ow valu	le is bas	ed on A	F of wa	ater. The	e 🗄	-	-	-	0
	12	7	No	_	A								-	_		0
	13	8	No	-	now v	alue is c	alculate	ed base	a on ac	laressin	ig some	2 📔	-	-	-	Ō
	14	9	No	-	portio	n or the	entire	flow de	ficit. If \	water is	not tak	ken 📕	-	-	-	0
	15	10	No	-	bocou	co thore	ic no fl	low dofi	cit in th	at mor	th or if	tho	-	-	-	0
	16	11	No		Decau	se there		low den	cit iii ti			ule	-		5	0
	17	12	No		propo	sed acq	uisition	i does n	ot prov	ide wat	ter in th	lat 📙	-	5	5	0
	18	13	No		month	then t	here is	no cont	ributio	n to the	flowv	alue 📙			5.	0
	19	14	NO No	- 3	monu	i, then t	incre is		inducio		. 110 00 00	uiuc.	-	-	-	0
	20	16	No									0	-	-	-	0
	22	17	No	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	0	-	-		0
Target flow data	23	18	No	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	0	-	-	-	0
	24	19	No	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	0	-	-	-	0
based on AFRP	25	20	No	-			-	-	5	-	-	0	-	-	-	0
996) and Jewell and	4-	-	_						11		1			1		1,488
amilton (2002)	27		Target Flow	(AF)												
	28	Year	Water Year	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	
	29	1	below normal	-	-	181 081	-	-	-	-	-	9,342	-	-	-	
	31	3	dry	-	-	181	-		-	-		9,342	-		-	
	47	19	critically dry			141						9.342				
	48	20	critically dry	4	12	(121)						9,342				
	49		Estimated Ba	se Flow (A	AF)											
	50	'rear	Water Year	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Арг	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	
	E	1	below normal		-	18		5		-	-	6,468	-	5		
D. Base flow	52	2	critically dry		-	16	-	-	-	-	-	990	-	-	-	
- Dusc now	53	3	dry	5	-	15		-	-	-		2,779		5		
is grounded in	69	19	critically dry		5	15	-	-	-	-		990	-	-		
ECOSIM data.	70	20	critically dry	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	990	-	-	-	
	71	Maga	Flow Value	0-4	Maria	Dee	- Inv	Cab		A	Maria	lum l	and a	A	Cau	Tetel
	72	Tear	holow normal	UCI	NUV	Dec	Jan	Feb	INISI	Арг	May	0.004	JUI	Aug	Sep	0.001
	73	2	critically dry	12	-	1.1	-	-	-	-	-	0.091	-		-	0.091
	75	3	dry	12		120	-		-	-	-	0.000	-		-	0.000
	90	18	dry	12	-2	120	14	142	14	12	14	0.000	12	1421	14	0.000
	91	19	critically dry	12		127	-	24	14	14	-	0.000	14	24	14	0.000
	92	20	critically dry	12		1234	4	14	14	14	-	0.000	14	14	14	0.000
	93	112 832			10						8					0.001

low value of a posed acquisition.

Water Year Sequences

Water year sequences were assumed based on the historic records for the American River, Sacramento River, and San Joaquin River watersheds. These sequences, in conjunction with assumptions of which types of acquisitions were eligible in each water year type (see NPV discussion on page 30) determine the NPV of costs. Costs that are farther in the future are discounted more, that is they are worth less in today's dollars. On the other hand, costs that are closer to the present are worth more relative to today. For example, if the distribution of water years were ordered from wet to critically dry, the higher costs of buying more water in the critically dry years would be discounted more. If the water years were ordered from critically dry to wet, the drier year water costs are discounted less. Both cases skew the NPV calculations. By assuming an unordered sequence, the NPV of costs is more representative of reality.

The water year sequences may be updated as the historic record becomes longer and as new information becomes available through applying the DSM. All changes should be justified and documented.

	A. Click the to close or worksheet	is button hide this		B. The assume slightly based though the di years is the sa	ed sequences char on the starting ye stribution of water me.	nge ar,		C. The corresponse sequence is chose DSM based on the water year type is the user.	nding en by the e starting nput by
	A	В	C	D	E	F	G	Н	
1	Close			Wa Assur	ter Acquisition mod Water Year S	Decision Mod equence by Drain	lel age		
3	Drainage	Waterway	Year	Wet	Above Normal	Below Normal	Dry	Critically Dry	Assumed
4	American R.	Clear Creek	1	wet	above normal	below normal	dry	critically dry	below normal
5		Cow Creek	2	above normal	wet	critically dry	critically dry	dry	critically dry
6		Cottonwood Creek	3	below normal	below normal	dry	below normal	below normal	dry
7		Battle Creek	4	critically dry	critically dry	above normal	above normal	above normal	above normal
8		Antelope Creek	5	dry	dry	wet	wet	wet	wet
9		Mill Creek	6	below normal	below normal	below normal	below normal	below normal	below normal
10		Deer Creek	7	below normal	below normal	below normal	below normal	below normal	below normal
11		Big Chico Creek	8	above normal	above normal	above normal	above normal	above normal	above normal
12		Butte Creek	9	wet	wet	wet	wet	wet	wet
13		Feather River	10	wet	wet	wet	wet	wet	wet
14	j U	Yuba River	11	dry	dry	dry	dry	dry	dry
15		Bear River	12	wet	wet	wet	wet	wet	wet

Exporting Scores to CDP

Once the DSM workbook has been populated with scores for each alternative, the scores must be exported into CDP. To do so, return to the Assumptions tab of the DSM workbook and click on the Generate CDP Export Summary button. From the Export Summary, highlight the cells containing the data that need to be exported and then copy it.

Elle Edit Arial Image: Second secon	view Insert Fg Can't Undo Ctr Bepeat Macros Ctr Cut Ctr Cut Ctr Diffice Clip_oard Paste Paste Ctr Paste Ctr Paste Special Paste as Hyperlink Fjil Clear Delete	ritelop Artel Conju	Lata abe E conj, ope, nctive	window Help → → → → ← C E I III Spot, Mill,) * - २ि 🧕 ८ * %) € D	¥Σ+2↓X ∷‰ \$\$8 ≢ E	↓ <u></u> 100 律 田 → ひ F	0% • ⊘ , • • A • □ ∎ G	H .	1	J	_ # ×
Arial Brite Control Co	Lan t Undo Cu Bepeat Macros Ctr Cut Crt Difice Clip_oard Paste Ctr Paste Ctr Paste Special Paste as Hyperlink Fjil Clear Delete	rl+V rl+V rl+V rl+V rtelop Antel Conju	abe =	• 子 ラ・ (章 臺 重 國 C Mill Spot, Mill,	"- 66 🤧 /	¥ Σ + Δ ↓ Δ : :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::	<u> </u> ∢ 00 ∰ ← & F	0% • ⊘ , • • <u>A</u> • ⊡ ⊞ G	н а в), н		J	×
Arial 3 Bi D31 & Cu D31 & Cu D	Bepeat Macros Ctr Cut Ctr Copy Ctr Diffice Clip_oard Paste Ctr Paste Special Paste as Hyperlink Fjil Clear Delete	rl+Y U rl+X rl+C E rl+V ntelop Antel Conju	abe E	E 🚍 🗮 💁	\$%, €	E	律 ⊞ + ð	•• <u>A</u> • 🖬 🖩 	н <mark>н</mark>	1	J	
D31 2 Co 1 CD 4 Out 3 Attril 4 NPV 5 Unit 6 Annu 7 Loca 8 Fish 9 Fish 10 Life 5 11 Flow 12 Enda 2 Out 13 Ecolo 13 Ecolo 14 Ecolo 15 Scier 16 Wate 17 Politi 18 Publi	Cut Ctr Copy Ctr Diffice Clip_oard Paste Ctr Paste Special Paste as Hyperlink Fjil Clear Delete	rl+X rl+C E rl+V ntelop Antel Conjur	e Conj, ope, nctive	C Mill Spot, Mill,	D	E	F	G	н		J	
I CD Ca Ca 1 CD Ca Ca Ca 3 Attril Pa Ca Pa 3 Attril Pa Ca Pa 4 NPV Fil Fil Fil 6 Annu Cl Fil Fil 7 Locca B Fish Du 10 Life 5 M M Fil 13 Ecold Re Fil Fil 14 Ecold Ga Fil Fil 16 Wate Fil Fil Fil 18 Public Fil Fil Fil 19 Regulatory T Fil Fil Fil	©opy Ctr Diffice Clip_oard Paste Ctr Paste Special Paste as <u>Hyperlink</u> Fjil Cle <u>a</u> r Delete	rl+C E rl+V ntelop Antel Conjur	e Conj, ope, nctive	C Mill Spot, Mill,	D	E	F	G	н	1	J	*
1 CD C 0 3 Attril Pa 4 NPV Pa 5 Unit Fil 6 Annu Cl 7 Loca Pa 8 Fish Da 9 Fish Da 10 Life S Ma 13 Ecold Pa 14 Ecold Pa 15 Scier Ga 16 Wate Life 17 Politi Pa 18 Publi Pa	Diffice Clip_oard Paste Ctr Paste <u>Special</u> Paste as <u>Hyperlink</u> Fjil Cle <u>a</u> r Delete	rl+V Antel Conjur	e Conj, ope, nctive	Mill Spot, Mill,				/				
1 CD C Pa 3 Attril Pa 4 NPV Fi 5 Unit Fi 6 Annu Cl 7 Loca Pa 8 Fish Du 10 Life S M 11 Flow M 12 Enda M 13 Ecold R 14 Ecold Gu 15 Scier Gu 16 Wate Iu 18 Public Public	Paste Ctr Paste Ctr Paste <u>Special</u> Paste as <u>Hyperlink</u> Fjil Cle <u>a</u> r Delete	rl+V ntelop Antel Conjur	e Conj, ope, nctive	Mill Spot, Mill,								
3 Attril Pa 4 NPV Fil 5 Unit Fil 6 Annu Cl 7 Loca Da 9 Fish Da 10 Life S M 12 Enda Ea 13 Ecold Ra 14 Ecold Ga 15 Scier Ga 16 Wate Ga 17 Politi Pa 18 Public Pa	<u>Paste</u> Ch Paste <u>Special</u> Paste <u>as Hyperlink</u> Fjil Cle <u>a</u> r Delete	rl+V ntelop Antel Conjur	e Conj, ope, nctive	Mill Spot, Mill,								
4 NPV 5 Unit 6 Annu 7 Loca 8 Fish 9 Fish 10 Life S 11 Flow 12 Enda 13 Ecold 14 Ecold 15 Scier 16 Wate 17 Politi 18 Publi	Paste <u>as Hyperink.</u> Fill Cle <u>a</u> r Delete		1000000	Spot	Mill Lease, Mill, Lease	Deer Spot, Deer, Spot	Deer Lease, Deer, Lease	Butte Purchase, Butte, Purchase	Yuba Options, Yuba, Option	Spot, Mokelumne, Spot	Conj, Mokelumne, Conjunctive	Le Star L
5 Unit Fil 6 Annu Cl 7 Loca Di 8 Fish Di 9 Fish Di 10 Life S Million 12 Enda Enda 13 Ecold Re 14 Ecold Generation 15 Scient Generation 16 Wate Generation 17 Politi Generation 18 Publit Generation	Fjll Cle <u>a</u> r Delete		1,357	308	4,354	266	1,777	2,560	17,765	442	6,000	
6 Annu Cl 7 Loca Du 8 Fish Du 9 Fish Du 10 Life S Mu 11 Flow Mu 12 Enda Mu 13 Ecold Mu 14 Ecold Gu 15 Scier Gu 16 Wate Lu 17 Politi Gu 18 Public Gu	Cle <u>a</u> r <u>D</u> elete,	1 T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T	204	207	100	220	75	59	65	223	90	
7 Loca 8 Fish 9 Fish 10 Life S 11 Flow 12 Enda # 13 Ecold 14 Ecold 15 Scier 16 Wate 17 Politi 18 Public 19 Regulatory T	<u>D</u> elete		133	323	360	279	146	318	137	464	608	
8 Fish U 9 Fish D 10 Life S M 11 Flow M 12 Enda A Enda 13 Ecold Re 14 Ecold Get 15 Scier Get 16 Wate Li 17 Politi Get 18 Public Public	<u>D</u> elete		0.00	-1.00	-4.00	-1.00	0.00	-1.00	-2.00	0.00	8.00	
9 Fish Da 10 Life S M 11 Flow Ei 13 Ecole Bi 14 Ecole Gi 15 Scier Gi 16 Wate Li 17 Politi 18 Public Scier T 19 Regulatory T		B. Co	by it.	1,810	1,810	1,984	1,984	.0	4,798	0	0	
10 Life S 11 Flow 12 Enda A 13 Ecold 14 Ecold 15 Scier 16 Wate 17 Politi 18 Public 19 Regulatory T	Delete Sheet			0.41	0.41	0.31	.0.31	0.00	0.07	0.00	0.00	
11 Flow 12 Enda #1 13 Ecole 14 Ecole 15 Scier 16 Wate 17 Politi 18 Public 19 Regulatory T	Move or Copy Sheet.	and the second s	0.40	0.31	0.77	0.62	0.69	0.67	1.00	0.21	0.12	
12 Enda da En 13 Ecolo Ry 14 Ecolo Gui 15 Scier Gui 16 Wate Li 17 Politi Gui 18 Publi			0.526	0.091	0.470	0.082	0.866	4.743	0.715	0.042	2.119	
13 Ecold Ru 14 Ecold Gi 15 Scier Gi 16 Wate Lu 17 Politi 18 Public Gi 19 Regulatory T	Eind Uti		0.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
14 Ecolo 15 Scier 16 Wate 17 Politi 18 Public 19 Regulatory T	R <u>e</u> place Ctr	1+H	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	10.00	2.00	4.00	2.00	8.00	
15 Scier 16 Wate 17 Politi 18 Public Scier 19 Regulatory T	Go To Ctr	1+6	8.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	8.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	8.00	
16 Wate 17 Politi 18 Public - Second 19 Regulatory T			8.00	0.00	2.00	0.00	8.00	2.00	2.00	0.00	4.00	
17 Politi 18 Public, con 19 Regulatory T	Links		8.00	10.00	7.00	10.00	7.00	7.00	10.00	9.00	10.00	
19 Regulatory T	<u>O</u> bject	-	6.00	10.00	6.00	10.00	8.00	2.00	10.00	5.00	6.00	
19 Regulatory I	opranoo Tioratakla		6.00	10.00	8.00	10.00	8.00	8.00	6.00	5.00	8.00	
	Timetable		2.00	10.00	4.00	10.00	6.00	8,00	5.00	10.00	2.00	
21												
22 Data Fo 24 25 26 B 27 28 W4 29 30 31 × → ×I / Assump Ready	ormats Dest/worst observation Best Score Vorst Score	CH2 Data acros demo For n score	M HILL: formats s all poss onstrate s neasures e for a pa e for a pa	automatically high ible alternatives, trengths and we where we observ rticular measure,	hight the best and Read from top to aknesses of each a re alternatives that highlighting is elimi stics / Life Stage	worst score for e bottom, highlight alternative. t share the best nated.	ach measure ed cells or worst			[.	NUM	
B Start) » 🕰	C. Docume	ents 🗔	Microsoft	Eve	S.4 0.8		0.261	DM

Pasting Scores in CDP

Return to the CDP file that contains the water acquisition alternatives. From the menu bar on the model Hierarchy screen, choose "View/Hierarchy Data." This brings up a table with the model structure, policy criteria, scoring element weights, and the alternatives with "Unrated" scores. Highlight all the "Unrated" cells and paste the scores from the DSM workbook.

😭 Criterium Deci	sionPlu	is - [Hierarchy - C	:\DOCUME~1\N	LEE\D	ESKTOP\USERGU	~1\FORSCR~1.CDP	1					
🔄 File Edit View Blo	ick Level	Model Results Analys	is Window Help									1
D 🍰 🔒			Navia Ontina Rati		? Ub-							
New Upen Save	File	Prevw Snap ondo	Navig Options nate	Scores	нер							
Goal	Weights	Rating Set	Policy Criteria	Weights	Rating Set	Attributes	Antelope	Mill Creek	Mill Creek	Deer Creek	Deer Cree!	Butte Cree
Value to Anadromous Fish	63.00	Cost of Alternatives	Cost of Alternatives	100.00	NPV of Costs	NPV of Costs	Unrated Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated
	44.00	Local Economic Impacts	2	0.00	Unit Costs (NPV)	Unit Costs (NPV)		Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unraced
	100.00	Biological Benefits		0.00	Annualized Costs	Annualized Costs	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated
	46.00	Scientific Information	Local Economic Impacts	1	Alternatives	Local Economic Impacts	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated
	77.00	Implementability	Biological Benefits	81.00	2x Absolute	2x Absolute	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated
				96.00	2x Distributed	2x Distributed	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated
				89.00	Life Stage	Life Stage	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated
1				89.00	Flow Value	Flow Value	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated
1				74.00	Endangered Species Benefits	Endangered Species Benefits	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated
				60.00	Ecological Impairments	Ecological Impairments	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated
				60.00	Ecological Improvements	Ecological Improvements	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated
			Scientific Information		Alternatives	Scientific Information	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated
			Implementability	91.00	Water Rights Type	Water Rights Type	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated /
				72.00	Political Acceptance	Political Acceptance	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated
2				68.00	Public Acceptance	Public Acceptance	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated
			4	61.00	Regulatory Timetable	Regulatory Timetable	Unrateo	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated	Unrated

A. Highlight the "Unrated" cells and paste the scores from the DSM workbook.

Out of Range Errors

If a dialogue window appears indicating a "Value out of range error," cancel the Paste operation by clicking the cancel button and then check to see if there has been a data entry mistake in the DSM workbook. If there is no data entry mistake, consider how far out of range the score is. If it is slightly out of range, by no more than 10 percent, consider truncating the value to the maximum score for that scoring element and running the DSM as usual.

If the score is out of range by more than 10% or if more than one score is out of range, consider omitting the alternative from the group of acquisitions under consideration. There is something unique about this alternative and comparing it to the others would not be appropriate. This alternative should still be considered for acquisition by the FWS, but do so outside of the DSM. The scoring elements most likely to have scores out of range are NPV of Costs, Unit Costs, Annualized Costs, and Flow Value.

The ranges of possible scores for the scoring elements should not be modified simply to accommodate an out of range alternative because doing so changes the assumptions of the DSM. The allowable range for each scoring element's possible scores was developed assuming typical water acquisition characteristics in terms of amount of water available, water prices, and temporal availability of the water. As more potential water acquisitions are considered, the DSM user may find that the characteristics of a typical alternative require the range of scores to be adjusted. Alternatively, another version of the DSM may be created to accommodate a particular kind of alternative (e.g., water rights purchases, a watershed, etc).

Justified changes in the range of scores should be documented so that rankings from the previous version are not compared to the new version and vice versa.

CDP Populated with Scores

Once CDP has been populated with the scores, click the "Scores" button from the row of icons above the scores to rank the alternatives.



Ranked Alternatives

CDP displays the ranked alternatives in the order in which they are displayed in the model Hierarchy. To show the rankings in descending order, click the Score button in the Sort taskbar.



Contributions by Policy Criteria

The contributions graphics can be displayed as vertical (default) or horizontal bars. To display as horizontal, from the menu bar choose "View/Graph Style/Stacked Horizontal Bar." From the contributions graph, the DSM user can see how each policy criterion contributes to the overall score of an alternative.





Works Cited

InfoHarvest, Inc. 1999. Criterion DecisionPlus User's Guide, Version 3.0.

Jewell, Dick and Andy Hamilton. 2002. Staff Report on Environmental Water Needs. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. June 25.

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service/Anadromous Fish Restoration Program (FWS/AFRP). 1996. "Draft Guidelines for Allocation of Water Acquired Pursuant to Section 3406(b)(3) of the Central Valley Project Improvement Act." October 22.

FWS/AFRP. 1995. "Working Paper on Restoration Needs. Habitat Restoration Actions to Double Natural Production of Anadromous Fish in the Central Valley of California." May 9.

Contacts for Additional Information

For additional information regarding the DSM and applications of the DSM please contact:

Dick Jewell

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Water Acquisition Program Richard_Jewell@fws.gov (916) 414-6536

Allan Highstreet CH2M HILL

Allan.Highstreet@ch2m.com (916) 286-0300